
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
March 23, 2011 

3:00 P.M. – DISTRICT OFFICE 
 

 
Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
 

1. Public comments. 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 

 
4. Consent Agenda 
 

a. Minutes of the March 9, 2011 Board Meeting. 
b. Recommend approval of Leak Relief to Maureen Hannah in the 

amount of $768.77. 
 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 
5. Bills 
 
6. Committee/Manager Reports 
 

a. Recreation Committee Minutes 
b. Personnel Committee Minutes 
c. Finance Committee Minutes 

 
 
7. Recommend approval of awarding the Reservation Software contract to 

Art Street Interactive. 
 

 1
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 



 2

 
8. Resolution authorizing execution of a five year agreement with California 

Homebrewers Association for the California Homebrewers Festival. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 
9. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Industrial Coatings in the 

amount of $28,730 for repairs to the Casitas Water Adventure. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
10. Resolution awarding a contract to Del Norte Construction in the amount of 

$31,298 for the Reservations Building Retrofit. 
 

 RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution  
 
11. Information Items: 
 

a. Lake Casitas Recreation Area Report for February 2011. 
b. Investment Report 

 
12. Adjournment  
  

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this 
meeting, please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext. 
113.  (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 



 1

Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 

March 9, 2011 
 

 A meeting of the Board of Directors was held March 9, 2011 at Casitas' 
Office, Oak View, California.  Directors Kaiser, Word, Baggerly, Hicks and 
Bergen were present. Also present were Steve Wickstrum, General Manager, 
Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and Attorney, John Mathews.  There was 
one staff member and four members of the public in attendance.  President 
Kaiser led the group in the flag salute. 

 
1. Public comments. 
 

Suza Francina addressed the board and requested that her address be 
corrected in the previous minutes.  Ms. Francina explained that she is 
representing the Ojai Wildlife League.  Members of the league are continuing to 
monitor the fence and there have been good changes in the strands of wire to be 
more animal friendly.  I have concerns that more of the areas were not in 
locations that can easily be accessed by deer.   I am interested to know who is 
looking at the photos in the two cameras.  What animals you have seen using the 
openings and if deer have been seen going over the fence.  I have collected 
comments from members of the public.  The animals have access to other 
sources of water and the impact of the new fence will be felt when we hit the 
drought period of the summer then we will know the impact to the animals.  The 
drought coincides when there are the most people at the lake.  Interested as to 
what you have observed as to how animals are accessing the area.  I asked ten 
league members who visit the lake and their comments are:  I’ve asked three 
kayaking buddies if they have seen a deer or coyote and they have not since last 
October at the lake or on the island.  A second individual stated I have seen no 
deer or coyotes and my friends haven’t either.  We are out there two to three 
times per week.  We have no problem getting under parts of the permeable 
fence.  Ms. Francina continued stating she looks forward to monitoring the 
situation. 

 
Shalom Joshua with the Ojai Wildlife League spoke regarding the fence.  I 

have noticed that some of the strands of the passageways do not have barbed 
wire on it now.  I encourage you to take the step of providing passageways on 
level land.  They are accessible by people anyway.  If there were passages on 
level land deer could have a better chance to get to the lake to drink.  This thing 
of the drought that is coming is something I can’t help but take seriously.  
Imagine what it means to you or me if you can’t get a drink.  I see it in the power 
of this board to remedy that.  It is as simple as putting permeable fencing like you 
have in some of the spots that are not level, in some of the level spaces.  Any 
information that you have about the movement of animals at the lake I would 
appreciate it.  We want as much information as you do at this time. 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 



 2

Mr. Wickstrum explained that the Oak View Reservoir would be up by 
Friday.  Our employees did a lot of work on that facility.  President Kaiser asked 
that he convey the board’s appreciation to staff. 
 

Kids Fishing Day is scheduled for March 26th.  We obtained approval from 
Department of Fish & Game.  Yesterday the Bureau of Reclamation visited us for 
an urban canal review.  We are in good shape in the way the canal is kept and 
cut into grade.  We are moving forward with the Park Store and they hope to 
open on April 1. 
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 

None 
 

4. Consent Agenda       ADOPTED 
 

a. Minutes of the February 23, 2011 Board Meeting. 
b. Resolution approving membership in American Society of Safety 

Engineers in the amount of $200. 
 
 The Consent Agenda was offered by Director Word, seconded by Director 
Baggerly and passed by the following roll call vote:   
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser  
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 11-06. 
 
5. Bills         APPROVED 
 
 Director Hicks questioned #01146 for the Gubernatorial Election.  Ms. 
Vieira explained this was our payment to the County for administering the 
election process.  Director Hicks then questioned the copier purchase in the 
amount of $6,700.  Mr. Wickstrum explained this is for a copier for the Recreation 
Area and they have a need for this type of copier. 
 

Director Word questioned the bills for the Freightliner.  Me. Wickstrum 
explained there had been some problems with the truck. 
 

Director Bergen questioned the bill for Wells Fargo and asked if the 
charges are broken out.  Ms. Vieira explained that the charges are broken out on 
the credit card statement and coded to the appropriate expense codes.  Director 
Bergen then asked about the rental fee for a tower.  Mr. Wickstrum explained this 
is for the American Tower contract. 
 
 On the motion of Director Hicks, seconded by Director Word and passed, 
the bills were approved. 
 



 3

6. Committee/Manager Reports   APPROVED FOR FILING 
 

a. Executive Committee Minutes 
b. Water Resources Committee Minutes 

 
On the motion of Director Baggerly, seconded by Director Word and 

passed, the Committee/Manager Reports were approved for filing. 
 
 
President Kaiser moved the meeting into closed session at 3:22 p.m. per 
Government Code 54957.6 Conference with Labor Negotiators. 
 
7. Closed session 
 
 (Govt. Code Sec. 54957.6) 

Conference with Labor Negotiators:    

Agency Designated Representatives:  Rebekah Vieira 

Employee Organization: Supervisory & Professional, General Unit and 
Recreation 

 
  President Kaiser moved the meeting back into open session at 3:49 p.m.  

John Mathews reported the board met with the Agency Designated 
Representative for labor negotiations.  They were provided an update and the 
board gave direction to staff. No action was taken 
 
 
8. Designation of labor negotiator and authorization for the President of the 

Board to enter into an agreement for labor relations consulting. 
          APPROVED 
   

John Mathews stated the Board was provided a recommendation by the 
Personnel Committee for an individual to serve as the Negotiator.  Mr. Mathews 
suggested the addition of one sentence in the contract asking to be billed on a 
monthly basis.   
 

  On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Hicks and passed, 
the Board approved a contract with Draza Mrvichin to serve as Labor Relations 
Consultant and Negotiator pursuant to the contract the board reviewed with the 
addition of a sentence stating the district would be billed on a monthly basis. 
 
9. Presentation regarding Matilija Dam Fine Sediment Study Group. 
 

  Mr. Wickstrum provided a presentation regarding the issues faced by the 
Matilija Dam Fine Sediment Study Group.  This group fist met in December and 
is comprised of a 14 person team.  They have progressed through three 
meetings with one meeting left.  The issues include how to handle the fine 
sediments, the 2.2 million yards of material and the escalating costs of the 



 4

project.  Mr. Wickstrum showed the various alternative disposal sites and the 
board discussed various concerns and impacts of the project. Further information 
can be obtained by viewing the feasibility report at www.matilijadam.org. 
 
10. Information Items: 
 

a. Monthly Cost Analysis for operation of Robles, fisheries and fish 
passage. 

b. Investment Report 
 
 
11. Adjournment  
  
 President Kaiser adjourned the meeting at 4:44 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
     __________________________________ 
     Secretary 

http://www.matilijadam.org/




































CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  March 7, 2011 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Recreation Committee Meeting of March 7, 2011 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.  Directors Kaiser and Hicks 
 Staff – PSM Carol Belser 
 
2. Public comments.  None. 

 
3. Board/Management comments. 

Director Hicks commented on the positive events of the rowing club at Lake Casitas. 
 
Director Kaiser asked about the efforts to control the over-population of rodents in the 
park. 
 

4. Lake Casitas Fisheries Update. 
PSM Belser reported that the Indian Mesa area of the lake is closed from fishing 
during the spawning season (March 1 thru May 1), discussion regarding notice to 
fishermen and citations efforts.  Fisheries staff are assembling the lake survey 
information and will be providing a review to the Committee in April 2011. 

 
 
5. Lake Casitas Recreation Area Visitation Number Methodology Update.  

PSM Belser presented the current method used to estimate park attendance, four 
visitors per vehicle average as per the standard used by the Bureau of Reclamation.  
The revenue listed in monthly reports will be extracted directly from the district’s 
financial statements, rather than from the PARCS system. 
 

6. Discuss options for Kid’s Fishing Day 2011. 
The Kid’s Fishing Day is set for Saturday, March 26th.  Fish are expected to be 
delivered on March 23rd.  the Department of Fish and game approved the importation 
of the fish from the Nebraska Tailwalkers.  The event will have local emergency 
response agencies (fire, search and rescue) to add to the fun and information of the 
event.  The event will be advertised in local newspapers. 
 

7. Incidents and Comments.  None. 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  March 17, 2011 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Assistant to General Manager, Rebekah Vieira 
 
Re:  Personnel Committee Meeting of March 16, 2011 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.  Directors Word and Bergen 
 Staff – Steve Wickstrum, Rebekah Vieira 
 Public – None 
 
2. Public comments.  None. 

 
3. Board/Management comments. None. 

 
 

4. Update on Recruitments. 
The Committee was informed that we are inviting candidates to interview for the Utility 
Worker position.  
 

5. Refund from ACWA JPIA. 
The Committee was informed that a refund in the amount of $890.43 was received 
from ACWA JPIA for plan years 1994 – 1999. 

 
6. Closed Session – Conference with Labor Negotiators.  Information was shared 

and no action was taken. 
 



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  March 18, 2011 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Finance Committee Meeting of March 18, 2011 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

 Director Bergen and Director Word  
 Staff – Steve Wickstrum and Denise Collin 
   
2. Public comments.   

 None. 
 

3. Board/Management comments.  
The General Manager informed the Committee on the following items: 

a) News article in the OC Register entitled “Rate Charges Prompt Outrage from 
Water District Customers”, February 23, 2011.  The Moulton Niguel Ater District 
attempted to approve a new tiered water rate structure, but did not perform 
adequate public information, resulting in customer letters to the Board.  The lack of 
communication to the public was the key message in the article.  

b) News article in the Noozhawk entitled “Goleta Water District Mulls 73% Rate Hike 
for New Commercial Water”, March 6, 2011.  “The current cost for commercial 
users is $26,240 per acre-foot, but the district would raise the price to $45,361 per 
acre-foot, allowing the district to cover its costs, McInnes said.”  Given the costs 
provided in the article, it was not sure as to whether there was a typo on the 
comma, where maybe it should have been a comma, or Goleta is actually at this 
cost of water for commercial use.  With State Water, the later is possible. 

 
 

4. Review of the Financial Statement for February 2011. 
The Committee reviewed the February 2011 financial statement.  Interest earnins are 
ahead of last year’s pace by approximately $160,000, although the earnings will not be 
posted until next month. 
 

5. Review of the Water Consumption Report for January 2011.  
It was recognized that the agricultural and pumped resale classifications are behind last 



 2 

year’s pace due to the rainfall and water pricing of Golden State Water Company, which 
shows a 400 acre-foot reduction in demand.  The Committee discussed projections and 
basis for development of the 2011-12 budget revenue. 
 

6. Review of Preliminary Draft Budget for Fiscal Year 2011-2012. 
The Committee reviewed the FY 2011-12 draft budget in the Manager Recommended 
form.  At present time, it appears that the budget is balanced with the addition of 
$1,324,886.83 from reserves.  The additional reserve is primarily due to the need for the 
replacement of the Rincon 2(M) replacement project which is expected to cost 
approximately $1.1M.  The Committee members will continue with their individual reviews 
and plan to work on schedule to bring the budget to the Board for further consideration. 

 
7. Review of Bid for Reservations Office Building Retrofit.   

The General Manager noticed the Committee that bids have been received for the 
reservations office retrofit and that the bid acceptance will be brought to the Board on 
March 23rd.  This project needs to move forward and be completed in a timely manner.  
 



 1

 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 Inter-departmental Memorandum 
 
 
DATE: March 16, 2011 
 
TO:  Steve Wickstrum, General Manager   
 
FROM: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager  
 
SUBJECT: Award of Reservation Software Contract 
                                                                                                                                                                       
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to award the reservation 
software contract to Art Street Interactive, the apparent lowest responsible bidder. 
  
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 
 
The Lake Casitas Recreation Area’s current camping reservation software, run by PARCS, a Canadian firm 
now known as Leisure Interactive LLC based in Orange, California, has been in use since 2003.  The 
PARCS system does not allow for “real time” reservations to be made by the customer. Customers are 
required to call or e-mail their reservation inquiry and a reservation staff then processes it during business 
hours.  The current benchmark for all types of recreation and entertainment is for customers to be able to 
make and pay for reservations on line and in real time.  The number of visitations on our new website 
during the busy season progresses to over 1,000 a day.  Based on this progression, it appears the majority 
of our customers are looking to make reservations during evening hours.  Additionally, the 2009 Target 
Audit outlined recommendations that the current system is unable to perform.  A few of the many benefits 
of the recommended software, Camava by Art Street Interactive include:   
 
 (a) A web based server eliminates the need for in house hardware and maintenance. 
 
 (b) Reservations processed by customers on line will not involve staff time, freeing staff to 
perform other necessary duties that will enhance customer service. 
 
 (c) The system is extremely user friendly allowing staff to “get up to speed” in minimal time, 
with minimal disruption. 
 
 (d)  The 2009 Target Audit report recommendation by Charles Z. Fedak includes the ability to 
assign a user name for all point of sales.   
 
A Request for Proposal was originally sent out in December with only one response.  The proposal, based 
on a percentage of ticket sales payment, would have been cost prohibitive and was rejected.  A second RFP 
was sent to four (4) companies, one of which declined to bid.  The bid results were as follows: 
 



 2

Company Base Price
Monthly 
Service

Training 
Included

Additional 
Training Waterpark Trlr Storage Quagga Data

Art Street,San Diego
$24,316 web 
based

Host $249 
**Tech 
Support 
$293.15

4 hrs
$400 Web 
$1,000 on site 
+ travel

Included
$400 to 
import data

$400 to import 
data

21st Century, Santa 
Barbara

$25,00 on 
site server $200

8 hrs on 
site $75/hour Included $5,000 Not Addressed

Leisure Interactive, 
Orange

Annual 
$11,200 + 

9% of tickets 
if sold by 

Leisure 

Weekly 
web     
Tech 15 
calls/ 
annually

Not Addressed

Annual 
$9,150 + 
$.70/ ticket 
sold by 
Leisure

$5,000 
Module $10,000, 
$2,000  to import 
data

 
** It is anticipated that after initial installation and appropriate lead time, the technical support fees will be eliminated over time. 

 
The bid from Leisure Interactive includes an annual fee and a percentage of sales that are made directly 
through their web site.  The bid from 21st Century was competitive, but required the service to be hosted on 
a Casitas server.  The lowest bidder, Art Street Interactive, met all of the criteria including hosting the 
service themselves. 
 
Art Street Interactive reviewed their Camava product with staff via phone conference demonstration on 
Thursday, March 3rd  covering the areas of most importance to Casitas.  Because the system is multi 
faceted, time constraints did not allow for every area to be covered, but staff was impressed with easy 
movement from screen to screen, the amount and quantity of stored information, the report writing and 
ability to download reservations, etc. to a personal device for printing or scanning. 
 
On Wednesday, March 9, 2011, Recreation staff did a site visit to the offices of the County of Ventura.  
The Camava system has been up and running for the County for approximately 2 years.  The Deputy 
Director, Ron Van Dyke, reviewed and demonstrated the software during a two hour presentation and 
addressed the pros and cons.  He is very pleased with the product and strongly recommends it. The 
demonstration was extremely comprehensive, many questions were answered and Mr. Van Dyke indicated 
that the system was highly satisfactory. 
 
According to Art Street Interactive’s website, the Camava software is utilized by some of the following 
organizations:  San Diego County, San Luis Obispo County, Ventura County, Carver County, Riverside 
County, Sonoma County, Santee Lakes, Santa Clara County and Los Angeles County. 
 
The new software has been budgeted in Capital, Project 119 in the amount of $31,000. If approved, staff 
will work to implement the new software as soon as possible. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 G:\WPDOCS\MEMOS\RECOMEND\ReservSoftware2011RcmndMemo-031611.doc 

 



G:\WPDOCS\MEMOS\RECOMEND\Homebrewers5YearAgreementRmndMemo041511.doc 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Interdepartmental Memo 

DATE: March 15, 2011 
 
TO: Steve Wickstrum 
 General Manager 
 
FROM: Carol Belser 

Park Services Manager 
  
SUBJECT: California Homebrewers Association - Five-Year Event Agreement  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that Casitas enter into a five-year agreement with California Homebrewers 
Association (CHA) for the annual California Homebrewers Festival to be held at the Lake 
Casitas Recreation Area.   
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 
 
The California Homebrewers Association has held annual events at Lake Casitas since 2008. The 
events have been well planned and have run smoothly.  
  
On June 7, 2010 the Recreation Committee approved the concept of multi year agreements for 
events held at the Lake Casitas Recreation Area.  A multi year agreement was approved for the 
Big Chili Cookoff on September 8, 2010. CHA is interested in ensuring future events at the Lake 
Casitas Recreation Area through the same type of arrangement.   
 
Multi year agreements are encouraged and supported by staff, as they save the administrative 
time for contract negotiations. It is beneficial to the sponsor because it secures their preferred 
dates and gives them the ability to budget with a predictable venue cost for the event.  This 
arrangement historically worked well for the Ojai Rotary-West Club which sponsors the annual 
Ojai Wine Festival. 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
The next Homebrew event is scheduled to be held the first weekend in May, 2011.  The venue 
fees will remain at a minimum of $2,500 per day for the duration of the agreement.  Additional 
direct costs may be incurred such as clean-up services not completed by sponsor.  As a reminder, 
staff researched other venues for fee comparison last fall.  The Lake Casitas Recreation Area 
event fees which have steadily increased over the years are now are at market level and support 
the preparation costs incurred for events.  Therefore, it is recommended that the Board approve 
the attached contract to enter into a five year agreement for this annual event to be held at Lake 
Casitas 2011 through 2015.  



U:\Recreation\Carole\Homebrewers5YrAgrResol031511.doc 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING 
THE PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD TO EXECUTE 

A FIVE YEAR AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT AND  
CALIFORNIA HOMEBREWERS ASSOCIATION  

FOR THE CALIFORNIA HOMEBREWERS FESTIVAL  
 
 

 WHEREAS, the California Homebrewers Association sponsored the California 
Homebrewers Festival at the Lake Casitas Recreation Area in 2010; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the California Homebrewers Festival has been a very successful 
event and the California Homebrewers Association desires to enter into an agreement 
with Casitas to sponsor the California Homebrewers Festival for five consecutive years; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Casitas has reviewed the Agreement and finds it to be in order; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the President of the Board is 
hereby authorized and directed to execute the California Homebrewers Association Five 
Year Agreement for the annual California Homebrewers Festival at the Lake Casitas 
Recreation Area in 2011 through 2015.  
 
Dated this 23rd day of March, 2011. 
 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Peter Kaiser, President 

Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Rebekah Vieira, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 























CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Interdepartmental Memorandum 

 
To:  Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
 
From:  Andy Benitez, Engineering Technician 
 
Subject: Bid Acceptance and Award - Casitas Water Adventure Repairs – 2011 at the Lake 

Casitas Recreation Area 

 Date:  March 15, 2011 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors accept the proposal submitted by Industrial Coatings, the lowest responsible 
bidder, and award a purchase order contract for the repairs to the Casitas Water Adventure at the Lake Casitas Recreation 
Area, in the amount of $ 28,730.00. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
The expansion joints surrounding six (6) concrete sections of the Lazy River portion of the Casitas Water Adventure are 
coming loose in areas where the old bonding agent has failed.  The gradual deterioration is causing a safety issue to the 
public.  This project scope includes repairing and modifying pre-marked joints, chipping loose concrete, cutting edges to ¾” 
depth, wet blasting and applying new bonding agent and filling those areas with patching mortar. A complete sand blasting 
and coating of the Bridge “Rock Wall” together with approximately 2,400 feet of “Rock” coping will also be performed to 
avoid further high chlorine cement deterioration of walls. 
 
Three (3) bids were received prior to the bid closing on Thursday, February 17, 2011 @ 2:30 p.m.  One bid from C&N 
Decorative Concrete Creations was received by email after the bid closing on Thursday, February 17, 2011 @ 3:55 p.m.  The 
bids from Concrete Illusions and C&N Decorative Concrete Creations were for lump sums and did not address the bid items 
on the bidding sheet.  In addition, both firms indicated that they would be utilizing a project other than that specified on the 
bidding sheet which the Principal Civil Engineer had previously rejected.  
 
  Firm      Bid Amount      Lowest Apparent Bidder 
      a) Industrial Coatings, Oceanside $28,730.00   $28,730.00 
      b)   Draper Construction, Somis  $34,900.00 
      c)   Concrete Illusion, Ventura  $24,500.00 (Non conforming bid utilizing disapproved 
        product)                                 
      d)   C & N Decorative Concrete Creations, 
            Newbury Park    $24,500.00 (Bid received after closing utilizing   
        disapproved product 
       
The amount of $35,000.00 has been budgeted in account 11.5.65.5040.00 for this work. 
 
 
 
 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM:  TODD EVANS, ASSISTANT ENGINEER 

SUBJECT: AWARD CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT- LCRA RESERVATIONS BUILDING RETROFIT 

DATE:  MARCH 17, 2011 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors accept the proposal submitted by the lowest 
responsible bidder and award the contract for the Lake Casitas Recreational Area 
Reservations Building Retrofit, Specification 11-345 in the amount of $31,298.00.  It is 
further recommended that the President of the Board execute the agreement for said work and 
the Board authorize staff to proceed with the administration of the contract. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
The District hired a consultant to conduct a security audit on its money receiving facilities at the 
Lake Casitas Recreational Area (LCRA). The consultant concluded the audit with a report and 
recommendations on how best to improve security at the LCRA. In summary, it was 
recommended that all monetary transactions be consolidated.  
 The District intents to comply with the recommendations by retrofitting the existing 
reservations building with ticket windows. The retrofit will include the construction of a small 
money counting room with a safe. The counting/safe room will be located inside the 
reservations building. The existing reservations building was selected due to its close proximity 
to the front gate, which collects money, and the fact the building is mostly concrete block. 
 
Bids were opened at 11:00 am on Thursday March 17th, 2011. The lowest apparent bidder was 
Del Norte Construction with a base bid of $ 26,300.00. Staff is recommending that the award 
amount include alternate bid items 10, 11 & 12 which is for additional concrete work and a patio 
cover/sunshade. This brings the total project amount to $ 31,298.00. 
 
For summarized bid results see attached sheet: 
 
The FY 2010-11 Budget allocated $37,000 for the project. 
 

 



U:\Management\Agendas\Board meetings\2011\03-23-11\2011-03-17 Resolution to board Reservations Retrofit 11-345.doc 

 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT 
FOR THE RESERVATIONS BUILDING RETROFIT 

SPECIFICATION NO. 11-345 
 

WHEREAS, the District invited bids from qualified contractors for the above-referenced 
project, and 
 

WHEREAS, the District received four bids, 
 
WHEREAS, Del Norte Construction submitted the low bid in the amount of $31,298.00 that 

includes all alternate bid items (10, 11, & 12). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas Municipal 

Water District as follows: 
 

1. That the proposal from Del Norte Construction is responsive. 
 
2. That the bid from Del Norte Construction in the amount of $31,298.00 be accepted for 

the Reservations Building Retrofit (Spec. #11-345) and a contract awarded. 
 

3. That staff is hereby authorized and directed to proceed with the administration of the 
contract with Del Norte Construction 

 
 

ADOPTED this                   day of                                        , 2011. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
President, 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________ 
Secretary, 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 
 



 1

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 

 
DATE:  March 17, 2011  
 
TO:  Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
 
FROM: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
   
SUBJECT: Recreation Area Monthly Report February 2011 
 
Visitation Numbers and Methodology 
 
The visitation numbers will continue to be presented in the manner they have been for the past 20 plus years. The 
Bureau of Reclamation requires visitation reporting each year, and suggested a methodology that is very similar to 
the method we have been using. The Recreation Committee received an update on this topic at the March 2011 
meeting.   
 
The following is a comparison of visitations for February 2011:   
 
 

 2010 2011 Jan 2011 
Visitor Days 26,196 18,216 28,980 
Camps 1,952 1,758 3,701 
Cars 6,549 4,554 7,245 
Boats 347 326 367 
Kayaks & Canoes 4 5 12 

 
Fiscal Year to Date Visitation 

2009/2010 388,800
2010/2011 408,316
% Change 5.020

 
Administration 
 
Staff and the Board’s Ad Hoc committee met with the Bureau of Reclamation staff to continue negations regarding 
the management agreement for the Recreation Area.  Progress is being made, and because of that, the BOR gave  
approval for a month to month agreement for Park Store operation. Subsequently, the Board approved Gary Wolfe  
to operate the Park Store this upcoming season.   
 
Boating/Fishing February 
 

There were 27 cables sold for new inspections, 14 vessel re-inspections, and 728 boats were retagged. 
Eleven boats failed the first inspection.   Shoreline fishing at night was held February 18 and 19.   
 
The LCIF approved funds and staff have made arrangements for 2011 Kids Fishing Day on Saturday, March 26.   
The fish will arrive from Chaulk Mound Trout Ranch.   
 
PSO and APSO staff are continuing to collect data for the creel survey and an opinion survey.  The majority of the 
data has been collected and now data is collected during the first week of each month.  District Biologist and his  
staff will analyze the data and present a preliminary report to the Recreation Committee at their April meeting.  



 2

Revenue Reporting 
The figures below illustrate all Lake Casitas Recreation Area’s revenue collected in the respective month (operations, 
concessions, Water Adventure, etc.) per the District’s Financial Summary generated by the Finance Manager with a 
previous year comparison.  

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

700,000

FY 09/10 657,684 468,111 221,424 249,082 140,840 123,494 167,416 215,552

FY 10/11 597,378 475,594 213,568 140,193 115,366 102,686 188,851 173,107

July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb

2009 Oct revenue includes $80,000 grant/Cortez

LCRA TOTAL REVENUE 

 
 
Incidents  
Three reportable incidents occurred in the Recreation Area including underage possession of alcohol, domestic dispute 
call to Sheriff and a medical emergency (fall) requiring transport via ambulance to Ojai Hospital. 
 
 
 
  
G:\WPDOCS\REPORTS\MONTH\2011\Feb.2011.doc 



   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

03/17/11
 

Weighed 
Average 

Type of Date of Amount of Current Rate of Date of % of Days to Days to
Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Deposit Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity Maturity

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XS4S40 09/16/11 $726,316 $712,215 3.625% 07/01/10 5.74% 179 10
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XSP930 12/13/13 $743,750 $737,107 3.125% 07/01/10 5.94% 986 59
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWNB10 06/12/15 $729,603 $736,379 2.875% 07/01/10 5.93% 1525 90
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWW470 03/09/12 $707,315 $705,509 1.125% 06/30/10 5.68% 352 20
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3134A4VG60 11/17/15 $807,683 $785,568 4.750% 07/19/10 6.33% 1680 106
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABS70 09/27/13 $766,605 $755,419 4.125% 07/01/10 6.08% 910 55
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACD90 07/28/14 $739,907 $736,421 3.000% 07/01/10 5.93% 1211 72
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACE70 09/21/12 $723,646 $717,976 2.125% 06/30/10 5.78% 544 31
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACF40 12/15/11 $706,398 $704,340 1.125% 06/30/10 5.67% 268 15
*TB Federal Natl MTG Assn 31398AYY20 09/16/14 $739,123 $737,072 3.000% 07/01/10 5.94% 1259 75
*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE10 07/15/18 $1,055,030 $1,099,618 1.375% 07/06/10 8.86% 2638 234
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828JW10 12/31/13 $709,352 $711,977 1.500% 04/01/10 5.73% 1004 58
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828LZ10 11/30/14 $718,129 $721,000 2.125% 07/01/10 5.81% 1333 77
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828MB30 12/15/12 $709,707 $707,518 1.125% 06/30/10 5.70% 628 36
*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF40 01/15/20 $1,041,021 $1,080,979 1.375% 07/01/10 8.71% 3178 277
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828ML10 12/31/11 $707,191 $704,263 1.000% 06/30/10 5.67% 284 16

Accrued Interest $58,062 $62,939

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $12,388,838 $12,416,300 85.31%

*CD CD - $0 $0 0.000% 0.00%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506 $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $0 $0 0.46% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,137,397 $2,137,397 0.89% Estimated 14.69%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $14,526,236 $14,553,698 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $14,526,236 $14,493,579

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $16,530,832 $16,530,832

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST $3,254,968 $3,254,968
CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $4,068 $4,068 0.470%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $17,785,271 $17,812,733

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $16,797,812 $16,797,812

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit
*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 
** Local Agency Investment Fund 
*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.
**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 
and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.
All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 
investment policy.


	3-23-11 agenda.pdf
	3-09-11 min
	Request for leak relief Maureen Hannah
	bill List
	Rec Minutes 03 07 2011
	Pers Minutes 03 16 2011
	Fin Minutes 03 18 11
	ReservSoftware2011RcmndMemo-031611
	Homebrewers5YearAgreementRmndMemo041511
	Homebrewers5YrAgrResol031511
	Homebrewer5YrAgreement-031411
	AwardContractMemo-031611 (1)
	2011-03-17 Memo to Board accepting bid 11-345 reserv bldg
	2011-03-17 Resolution to board Reservations Retrofit 11-345
	RecreationReport-Feb2011
	Investment Report  3-17-11
	A


